
 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  Contact: Democracy@enfield.gov.uk 

 
Wednesday, 4 January 2023 at 10.00 am  Direct : 020-8132-1211 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Silver Street, 
Enfield, EN1 3XA 

 Tel: 020-8379-1000 
 Ext: 1211 
 E-mail: democracy@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
 
Councillors :  Esin Gunes (Chair), Michael Rye OBE and Doug Taylor (Vice-Chair) 
 
 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 
 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary, other pecuniary or 

non pecuniary interests relating to items on the agenda. 
 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To receive and agree the minutes of the meetings held on Wednesday 3 

August  2022. 
 

4. MAXI FOOD & WINE, 38 CHASE SIDE, SOUTHGATE, N14 5PA  (Pages 7 - 
258) 

 
 Review Application 

 
5. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).  
(There is no part 2 agenda) 
 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.8.2022 

 

- 1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 3 AUGUST 2022 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT Esin Gunes (Chair), Edward Smith and George Savva MBE 

(Cabinet Member for Social Housing) 
 
ABSENT None 
 
OFFICERS: Ellie Green (Principal Licensing Officer), Antonia Makanjuola 

(Legal Services), Suzanne Connolly (Governance Officer) 
  
Also Attending: Mr Alfons Prifti (Applicant), Mr Fabien Simms, FSL Business 

Consultants, on behalf of the applicant 
Interested Party (referred to as IP3) on behalf of local 
residents objecting 
Councillor Doug Taylor (Palmers Green Ward Councillor), 
Councillor Sabri Ozaydin 

 
1  WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Councillor Gunes as Chair welcomed all attendees to the meeting, and 
explained the order of the meeting. 
 
2  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
NOTED there were no declarations of interest in respect of the items on the 
agenda. 
 
3  TOTO LOUNGE & BAR LTD, 74 ALDERMANS HILL, LONDON, N13 
4PP  
 
RECEIVED the application for a new premises licence at the premises known 
as Toto Lounge & Bar Ltd, situated at 74 Aldermans Hill, London, N13 4PP.  
 
NOTED 
 
1. The introduction by Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, including:  

 
a. The premises had held a premises licence previously, for a 

convenience store, although this licence is currently suspended due to 
non-payment of annual fees. The licence holder of that licence is 
completely different to the applicant for this new application, which is 
Toto Lounge & Bar Ltd. The only director of this company is Mr Alfons 
Prifti, who is also the proposed Designated Premises Supervisor with 
this application. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.8.2022 

 

- 2 - 

b. The new application is for a Restaurant Café and Coffee Shop seeking 
supply of alcohol on supply and late-night refreshment until midnight 
latest. The full timings and activities now sought are set out in Table 3 
of the report, see the table in the Supplementary Report, namely: 
 
Table 3 

Activity Proposed Times 
Supply of Alcohol (on 
supply only) 

10am to 23:30 daily 

Late Night Refreshment 
(indoor and outdoor) 

23:00 to 23:30 Sunday to Thursday 
23:00 to 00:00 Friday & Saturday 

Opening hours 06:30 to 00:00 Monday to Friday 
08:00 to 00:00 Saturday & Saturday 

 
c. The Police did not make any representation to this application. 
d. The Licensing Authority objected to the full hours sought, and an 

agreement to the times and conditions has now been made so that 
representation is now withdrawn. The final agreed conditions between 
the applicant and the Licensing Authority are set out in Annex 9 of the 
report. 

e. The only outstanding representations are from Other Persons, namely 
11 local residents who have also objected to the application in its 
entirety. Those representations are set out in Annex 5, from page 49 of 
the report. 
 

2. The statement of Mr Alfons Prifti (applicant) made by Mr Fabien Simms of 
FSL Consultants on behalf of the applicant: 

 
a. The reduced hours proposed had been agreed. 
b. The primary objective of the business was to provide coffee and a high-

quality range of produce.  It will be a sit-down café/restaurant and not a 
bar/nightclub as suggested by the interested parties.  The sale of 
alcohol would be only for on-sales. 

c. It will be waiter service and open to all members of the public.  The aim 
is not for customers to get intoxicated and any that do will be removed 
from the premises. 

d. The premises will benefit the community and have no detrimental 
impact on the area.  Issues with other businesses in the area are not to 
do with this application. 

e. Customers come through the main door and the outside rear area 
holds around 20 customers.  The premises is a small and intimate 
venue. 

f. Each complaint had been considered and no concerns or 
representations were made from the police or noise nuisance team.  Mr 
Prifti had never been in trouble with the law and the allegations made 
were unfounded. 

 
3.  In response, the following comments and questions were received: 

Page 2



 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.8.2022 

 

- 3 - 

 
a. Cllr Savva raised concerns about litter, noise and staff training.  Mr 

Prifti stated that he had already been keeping the front of the shop 
clean, even though the business was not yet trading.  In relation to staff 
training, the condition around this had already been agreed.  Staff 
would receive regular training and records would be kept. 

b. Cllr Smith asked if cooked food would be served.  Mr Prifti confirmed 
that food such as pastries and paninis would be warmed up, however 
there was not a fully functioning kitchen to prepare fully cooked meals. 

c. It was questioned and then confirmed that the condition in annex 9 
point 9 had been agreed by the applicant. 

d. In response to questions about chairs and tables on the pavement at 
the front of the shop, it was confirmed this was not planned and a new 
licence would need to be applied for to allow this. 

e. It was highlighted that the noise team had served a section 60 notice.  
Mr Simms stated it was a warning about building noise and once it was 
received the applicant resolved the issue which was a one-off occasion 
by a tiler.  The IP disagreed and said the noise continued. 

f. In response to Cllr Taylor’s query, the applicant was not aware of any 
breaches to planning permission.  The structure at the rear was owned 
and retained by the landlord.  The legal representative advised it was 
not relevant to this application. 

g. There was a discussion related to an extension to the rear of the 
property.  Mr Simms clarified that it was not extension but works to the 
garden which were all completed in accordance with building 
regulations.  A slanted cover had been installed to cover a seated area 
in the garden.  The work to the garden had taken around two months, 
on and off. 

 
4.  The statement from IP3 on behalf of interested parties/residents: 
 

a. There were already multiple bars and coffee shops in the area and 
adding to this would create more issues with parking and litter.  The 
builders had left rubbish and were working out of hours creating a noise 
nuisance.  Eleven complaints were made to the council. It was felt 
there had been zero respect to the residents. 

b. There were issues with the building height, cut wires, blocked 
ventilation and concerns about behaviour towards women. 

c. Cllr Taylor drew attention to Annex 5 of the report detailing IP 
representations.  There were many incidents of noise and issues with 
trust. 

 
5.  In response, the following comments and questions were received: 
 

a. It was questioned if music was permitted within the licence.  Ellie Green 
advised that rules state if alcohol is permitted then live and recorded 
music can be played between 8am and 11pm.  This application does 
not seek music on the licence. 

Page 3



 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.8.2022 

 

- 4 - 

b. In regard to the prevention of nuisance, it was felt building works did 
not meet conditions and there was a lack of concern for neighbours. 

c. The applicant clarified that the noise issue was due to a tiler cutting 
tiles out of hours which was dealt with promptly.  All work was now 
complete, and he wished to start his business. 

d. IP3 felt that residents’ complaints were not dealt with and referred to 
emails with Mr Islam.  Ellie Green confirmed that a section 60 notice 
was served and sent to the applicant by recorded delivery.  The 
applicant confirmed he received this and followed it up as was 
concerned about a £20,000 fine.  Ellie Green advised that prosecution 
would take place if the noise continued; there were no further records 
after the notice was issued. 

e. IPs had referred to the premises as a bar and Mr Simms wished to 
clarify that it was not a bar and therefore negative comments 
associated with bars cannot be attached.  Cllr Taylor highlighted that 
the name contained the word “bar” which was confusing.  Mr Prifti was 
considering this. 

f. It was noted that a lot of building work had been taking place in the 
area, included the rear of the premises which were not linked to this 
application.  IP3 appreciated this, however, lives very nearby and can 
tell where the noise is coming from, for example noise on a Sunday 
morning at 6.30am in May 2022.  Mr Prifti stated that at that time of day 
it would only be him working and he denies it. 

g. Mr Prifti confirmed there would be no shisha in the rear garden. 
h. Regarding opening hours, Ellie Green provided details of opening and 

closing times for similar businesses in the area, which were broadly in 
line with this application. 

 
6.  The summary statement of Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer: 
 

a. Having heard these representations from both parties, it is now for the 
Committee to consider whether the new premises licence application is 
appropriate, and in support of the licensing objectives. 

b. The licensing sub-committee must decide whether to: 
 
• grant the application subject to the mandatory conditions and such 

conditions as it considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives; 

• exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities 
to which the application relates; 

• Or, reject the application in full.  
 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
1. In accordance with the principles of Section 100(a) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting 
for this item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 

Page 4



 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.8.2022 

 

- 5 - 

disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 

 
The Panel retired, with the legal representative and committee 
administrator, to consider the application further and then the meeting 
reconvened in public. 
 

2. The Chair made the following statement: 
 

“The Licensing Sub-Committee (LSC) having considered written and 
oral submissions made by the Licensing Authority, the Applicant and 
the Interested Parties (IPs) has decided to grant the application in part. 
The LSC was concerned to restrict noise nuisance in a mainly 
residential area and has resolved to include a condition 9b which would 
restrict access to the garden area to 23.00 hours from Monday to 
Sunday. Therefore, drinks will not be served to customers in the rear 
garden area after 22:30 and customers shall not be allowed to use the 
rear garden area of the premises after 23:00 hours on Monday to 
Sunday. This will promote the licensing objectives of the Prevention of 
Public Nuisance. 
 
The LSC has considered the statutory guidance and the London 
Borough of Enfield’s Policy Statement in making its decision and has 
made its decision in promoting the four licensing objectives and in 
particular that of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and Prevention 
of Public Nuisance.” 
 

3. The Licensing Sub-Committee resolved to grant the application in part. 
 
 
4  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS  
 
AGREED the minutes of the meetings held on 6th October 2021, 20th October 
2021 and 27th April 2022 as a correct record. 
 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2022/23 REPORT NO.  
 
 

Agenda - Part 
 

Item 
 

COMMITTEE : 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
4 January 2023 
 
REPORT OF : 
Ellie Green, Licensing Team Manager 
 
LEGISLATION : 
Licensing Act 2003 

SUBJECT : 
Review Application 
 
PREMISES : 
Maxi Food & Wine, 38 Chase Side, Southgate, 
N14 5PA 
 
WARD : 
Southgate 

 
 
PLEASE NOTE: This review application initially went to a hearing on 14 December 

2022 but was adjourned to this new date due to technical difficulties as the 
hearing was held virtually, on MS Teams Live Events. 

 
1 LICENSING HISTORY & CURRENT POSITION - LN/200600265: 

 
 

1.1 The premises has been previously known as Station Stores, and Royal News 
before being named Maxi Food & Wine. 
 

1.2 On 23 June 2006, a new premises licence application which was not subject 
to any representations, was granted by officers in accordance with delegated 
powers, naming Mr Kandasamy Nirmalan as the Premises Licence Holder 
(PLH) and also as the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS). 

 
1.3 On 27 May 2011, a transfer application which was not subject to any 

representations, was granted by officers in accordance with delegated 
powers, naming Mr Gurdeep Singh Kahlon as the Premises Licence Holder 
(PLH), and also became the DPS.  

 
1.4 On 6 September 2021, a transfer application which was not subject to any 

representations, was granted by officers in accordance with delegated 
powers, naming Mr Dervis Altun as the Premises Licence Holder (PLH), and 
also became the DPS.  

 
1.5 On 12 May 2021, Mr Dervis Altun surrendered premises licence 

LN/200600265, as he stated he had not been owner of this premises for 
some time. 

 
1.6 On 7 June 2021, a transfer application which was not subject to any 

representations, was granted by officers in accordance with delegated 
powers, naming Mrs Aylin Yengin as the Premises Licence Holder (PLH), 
and also became the DPS. The transfer application was permitted as it was 

Page 7 Agenda Item 4



submitted within the timeframe permitted by the Act to transfer a surrendered 
premises licence. 

 
1.7 The premises has not submitted any minor variation applications to add 

conditions. 
 

1.8 The premises licence LN/200600265 has not been subject to a review 
application previously. 
 

1.9  The current Premises Licence LN/200600265 permits: 

1.9.1       Hours the premises are open to the public: 06:30 to 23:00 daily.  
 
1.8.2  Supply of alcohol (off supplies only): 06:30 to 23:00 daily. 
 
1.9   A copy of the current premises licence LN/200600265 is attached   

in the Trading Standards review application appendices, namely Appendix 6    
in Annex 1. 

 
 
2.0  THIS APPLICATION: 
 
2.1  On 26 October 2022 an application was made by Enfield Council’s Trading 

Standards for the review of Premises Licence LN/200600265 and is produced in 
Annex A.  
 

2.2  The Appendices to support the Trading Standards review are produced in Annex 
B. 

 
2.3   Trading Standards have produced additional information to support the review 

application, which is produced in Annex C. 
 
2.4   The review application has been submitted as Trading Standards believes that 

Mrs Aylin Yengin is not promoting the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 
objective. A wide range of unlawful activity has taken place whilst Mrs Aylin 
Yengin has been the premises licence holder, despite advice to prevent such 
activity having been provided by the Council previously. The unlawful activity 
includes: 

• illicit tobacco has been seized from the premises; 
• breaches of licence conditions; 
• selling non-compliant vapes and e-cigarettes; 
• selling Viagra and Sildenafil without a medical registration from MHRA; 
• selling drug paraphernalia;  
• selling nitrous oxide (known as NOx). 

 
2.5   The review application seeks to revoke the premises licence in its entirety. 

 
2.6  The review application was advertised in accordance with the requirements of 

the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
2.7   Each of the Responsible Authorities were consulted in respect of the application. 
 

 
 

Page 8



3.0  RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
3.1    Metropolitan Police – Representation was made in support the review and 

provides additional information that Mrs Aylin Yengin, the premises licence 
holder, does not uphold the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective. 
A copy of the Police representation can be seen in Annex D. 

 
3.2    Other Parties – Representations have been made on behalf of the three 

Southgate ward councillors in support the review, as they believe the review 
application demonstrates that Mrs Aylin Yengin, the premises licence holder 
does not support any of the four licensing objectives: the prevention of crime and 
disorder; public safety; the prevention of public nuisance and protection of 
children from harm. A copy of the Southgate ward councillors representation can 
be seen in Annex E. 

 
3.3    Premises Licence Holder – No representation has been made by Mrs Aylin 

Yengin in response to this review application at the time the report was prepared. 
 
 
4.0  PROPOSED LICENCE CONDITIONS: 
 
4.1   If the Licensing Committee is not minded not to revoke the licence in its entirety, 

Trading Standards have proposed additional conditions be added to the 
premises licence.  

 
4.2   The premises licence holder, Mrs Aylin Yengin, has not indicated whether those 

conditions would be agreed. 
 
4.2   A copy of the proposed conditions arising from the review application can be 

seen in Annex F. 
 
 
5.0 RELEVANT LAW, GUIDANCE & POLICIES: 
 
5.1 The paragraphs below are extracted from either : 

5.1.1 the Licensing Act 2003 (‘Act’); or 

5.1.2 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to the Home Office of April 
2018 (‘Guid’); or 

5.1.3 the London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing Policy Statement of January 
2020 (‘Pol’). 

 
 General Principles : 
 
5.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a view to promoting 

the licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)]. 
 

Page 9



5.3The licensing objectives are : 

5.3.1 the prevention of crime and disorder; 

5.3.2 public safety; 

5.3.3the prevention of public nuisance; & 

5.3.4the protection of children from harm [Act s.4(2)]. 
 
5.4 In carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to : 

5.4.1 the Council’s licensing policy statement; & 

5.4.2 guidance issued by the Secretary of State [Act s.4(3)]. 
 
 

Review:  
 
5.5 In reviewing a licence the Licensing Sub-Committee will consider, and take into 

account, the complaints history of the premises and all other relevant information 
[Pol s.10.3].  

 
5.6 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly 

connected with licensable activities, for example the sale of contraband goods. 
The Sub-Committee does not have the power to judge the criminality or 
otherwise of any issue. The Sub-Committee’s role is to ensure the promotion of 
the crime prevention objective [Guid s.11.24].  

 
5.7 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed 

premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These include the use of 
the premises for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol [Guid 
s.11.27].  

 
5.8 Where reviews arise in respect of these criminal activities and the Sub-Committee 

determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined, it is 
expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be 
seriously considered [Guid s.11.28]. 

 
 

Decision: 
 

Page 10



5.9 Having heard all of the representations (from all parties) the Licensing Sub-
Committee must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. The steps are :  

5.9.1 to modify the conditions of the licence; 

5.9.2 to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 

5.9.3 to remove the designated premises supervisor 

5.9.4 to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 

5.9.5 to revoke the licence [Act s.52]. 
 
5.10 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, the Sub-Committee should so far as 
possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns which the 
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at 
these causes and should generally be directed at those causes and should always be 
no more than an appropriate and proportionate response to address the causes of 
concern that instigated the review.  [Guid s.11.20]. 
 
 
Background Papers :  
None other than any identified within the 
report.  
 
Contact Officer :  
Ellie Green on 0208 1322 128 

 

 

Page 11



1 F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate 
under the Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all 
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use 
additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  
I  Amanda Butler-Senior Fair- Trading Officer 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below  

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details 

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Maxi Food & Wine 
38 Chase Side 

Post town 

London 

Post code (if known) 
N14 5PA 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if 
known)  

Aylin YENGIN 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known 

LN/200600265 

Part 2 - Applicant details 

I am  
Please tick yes 

1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the
premises

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

Annex APage 12



                       2                  F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) 
below) 

    

 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 
 

Please tick 
Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       
 (for example, Rev) 
 
Surname  First names 

             

 
 Please tick yes 

I am 18 years old or over 
 

 

 

Current postal  
address if  
different from 
premises 
address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       

 
E-mail address 
(optional)  

      

 

 

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

 
Name and address 
      

Telephone number (if any) 
      

E-mail address (optional)  
      

 

Page 13



                       3                  F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

 

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 
 
 
Name and address 
 
Enfield Council’s Trading Standards Department 
Amanda Butler- Senior Fair-Trading Officer 
Civic Centre, Silver St, Enfield EN1 3ES 

Telephone number:  

E-mail address:   

 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
 Please tick one or more boxes 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder  
2) public safety  
3) the prevention of public nuisance  
4) the protection of children from harm  

 

Please state the ground(s) for review: (please read guidance note 1) 
 
Enfield Licensing Authority is seeking a review of the premises licence on  
the grounds that smuggled/ non-duty paid goods have been found on the premises 
i.e.  non-duty paid cigarettes. 
 
This review is primarily based on the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 
objective. The review application is to revoke the premises licence in its 
entirety. 
 
1.0 Background: 
 
Premises License Summary 
 
1.2 On 18/11/2006, LN/200600265 Premises licence was issued to Designated 
Premises Supervisor Mr Kandasamy Nirmalan on 18/11/2006  
 
1.3 On 11/05/2011, LN/200600265 Premises Licence was issued to Designated 
Premises Supervisor and Premises Licence holder Aylin YENGIN -  

 on 11/05/2011.  
 
1.4 On 06/09/2021, A transfer and variation of Premises licence LN/200600265 was 
issued to Designated Premises Supervisor- Dervis ALTUN  

 on 06/09/2021. APPENDIX 1 
 
1.5 On 12/05/2022, LN/200600265 Premises licence was surrendered on 
12/05/2022. Enfield Council’s Licensing Department issued a letter of 12/05/2022 
addressed to the Owner of Maxi Food & Wine, 38 Chase Side N14 4PA stating that 
no licensable activity is permitted to take place with immediate effect, for example, 
the sale of alcohol (off supplies). APPENDIX 2 

 
 
 
 

Page 14



                       4                  F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

 
 
 
 
1.5 On 27/05/2022, Aylin Yengin- , 
submitted a Licensing application to transfer premises licence LN/200600265 from 
Dervis Altun and apply to be a Designated Premises Supervisor pertaining to Maxi 
Food & Wine, 38 Chase Side N14 4PA.   APPENDIX 3 
 
1.6 On 27/05/2022, Enfield Council’s Licensing Department emailed Responsible 
Authorities notifying them of the Licensing Application to transfer premises licence 
LN/200600265. APPENDIX 4 
 
1.7 On 01/06/2022, email from Police Licensing Department stating no 
representations pertaining to Licensing Application (27/05/2022) to transfer premises 
licence LN/200600265. APPENDIX 5 
 
1.8 On 07/06/2022, Enfield Council’s Licensing Department emailed variation of 
premises licence to Designated Premises Supervisor, namely Aylin YENGIN-  

 regarding Maxi Food & Wine- 38 Chase Side N14 
4PA. APPENDIX 6  
 
1.9 On 8/07/2022, Enfield Council conducted a Licensing Enforcement Inspection to 
Maxi Food & Wine following the surrender of the premises licence LN/200600265 on 
12/05/2022.  Officers observed alcohol for sale on the retail premises. 
The Officer spoke to the Owner namely Kemal Altun whom explained that the 
premises licence LN/200600265 and DPS had been transferred to his wife. Officers 
also noted that the retail premises were selling drug paraphernalia  
and viagra tablets. APPENDIX 7 
 
2.0 On 12/08/2022, LN/200600265 premises licence was suspended on 12/8/2022.  
However, the annual fee of the afore-mentioned premises licence was paid on 
05/09/2022. 
 
2.1 Enquiries received by Enfield Council pertaining to Maxi Food & Wine 
 
2.2. On 4/05/2021, Enfield Council’s Trading Standards received an enquiry from a 
member of public pertaining to alleged 24/7 opening hours of Maxi Food & Wine and 
the sale of Marlboro cigarettes and counterfeit Viagra to consumers. APPENDIX 7.1 
 
2.3 On 22/12/2022, Enfield Council’s Trading Standards Department received an 
enquiry pertaining to a member of Public alleging the sale of Nitrous Oxide (laughing 
gas) along with balloons and alcohol to persons under the age of 18 years old.   
(APPENDIX 7.2) The afore-mentioned enquiry was subsequently referred to Enfield 
Council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Department and Licensing Department on 
23/12/2021. 
 
2.4 On 09/02/2022, Enfield Council’s Trading Standards Department issued an 
advisory letter to Maxi Food & Wine, 38 Chase Side N14 pertaining to age restricted 
training conducted by the Police 11/02/2022. (APPENDIX 8) 
 
2.5 On 16/06/2022, Enfield Council received an enquiry via Enfield Council’s 
Neighbourhood liaison Officer alleging the sale of Nitrous Oxide (laughing gas) to 
persons under the age of 18 years old. (APPENDIX 8.1) 
 
 
 

Page 15



                       5                  F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

2.6 On 27/7/2022, Enfield Council’s Trading Standards received an enquiry from a 
member of public pertaining to alleged sale of large cannisters (cream chargers) of 
nitrous oxide (laughing gas) being stored and/or sold to consumers from  
Maxi Food & Wine.  As a result of the afore-mentioned enquiry, an advisory letter 
pertaining to the Psychoactive Substances Act 2016, was issued to the Owner of 
Maxi Food & Wine on 1/08/2022. (APPENDIX 9) 
 
2.7 On 4/08/2022, Enfield Council’s Trading Standards received an enquiry from a 
member of public pertaining to the alleged sale of cannisters of nitrous oxide 
(laughing gas) being sold to consumers who after purchasing the nitrous oxide,  
fall asleep outside the retail premises. (APPENDIX 9.1) 
 
2.8 On 10/8/2022, the alleged possession of large cannisters of Nitrous Oxide was 
reported to Enfield Council’s Anti-social behaviour Department whom subsequently 
referred the afore-mentioned to the Police on 19/08/2022 and 16/9/2022, 
respectively. 
 
2.9 On 7/10/2022, Enfield Council’s Trading Standards received an enquiry from a 
member of public alleging the sale of cannisters of nitrous oxide (laughing gas) to 
persons under the age of 18 years old for recreational use. (APPENDIX 9.2) 
 
2.9.1 On 11/10/2022, Enfield Council Trading Standards emailed the Anti-Social 
Behaviour Department and the Police regarding the referral of the sale of nitrous 
oxide (laughing gas) from Maxi Food & Wine. 
 
3.0 Inspection history 
 
3.1 As a result of enquiry 4/5/2021 from a member of Public (7.1), on 27/05/2021 
Enfield Council’s Licensing Department conducted a Licensing enforcement 
inspection and identified breaches of Premises Licence conditions 4,7,11 and 12. 
(APPENDIX 10) 
 
3.2 As a result of an enquiry received by Enfield Council’s Trading Standards 
Department on 22/12/2021 pertaining to the alleged sale of Nitrous Oxide (laughing 
gas) along with balloons and alcohol to persons under the age of 18 years old (2.3). 
On 4/01/2022, a warning/advisory letter was issued via post to Dervis Altun DPS of 
Maxi Food & Wine outlining the requirements of complying with the Psychoactive 
Substance Act 2016.  (APPENDIX 11) 
 
3.3 On 22/01/2022, Enfield Council’s Licensing Enforcement Department conducted 
a Licensing Enforcement inspection on 22/01/2022.  Dilan Karakus signed the 
inspection sheet of 22/01/2022.  Dilan Karakus stated the Owner of Maxi Food & 
Wine as Aylin YENGIN and the Manager as Metin YENGIN.  The Tobacco gantry 
was open during the inspection and was requested to be closed in accordance with 
Tobacco Legislation.  (APPENDIX 12) 
 
3.4 Subsequent to the Inspection on 22/01/022, on 24/01/2022, Enfield Council’s 
Licensing Enforcement Department emailed Maxi Food & Wine via email address 
conveyed during the said inspection.  The email requested confirmation of:- 
 

• who has control of the business Maxi Food & Wine 

• who has day to day control of training staff of alcohol legislation 

• that the premises licence conditions have been complied with and that the 
tobacco gantry has been fixed/repaired. (APPENDIX 13) 

 
 

Page 16



                       6                  F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

3.5 On 24/03/2022, Enfield Council’s Trading Standards Department conducted a 
Vape/E-cigarette compliance inspection to Maxi Food & Wine-38 Chase Side N14 
5PA.  Approximately 343 non-compliant Vapes/E-cigarettes were seized.  
 
3.6 On 31/03/2022, Red Snapper Group conducted a test-purchase of cigarettes on 
31/03/2022 on behalf of Enfield Council as part of a national initiative, namely  
Op Cece, aimed at removing illegal tobacco from retailers within the Borough of 
Enfield. 2 packets of Marlboro Gold cigarettes were purchased from Maxi Food & 
Wine-38 Chase Side N14 5PA.The amount of the cigarettes were £7.50 each.  
(APPENDIX 14) 
 
3.7 On 04/08/2022, Officers from Enfield Council’s Trading Standard Department, 
a sniffer dog handler and specialist sniffer dogs from Wagtail UK Ltd conducted 
unannounced inspections to retailers in the borough of Enfield aiming to crackdown 
the sale/possession of illegal tobacco. 
 
At approximately, 10.43HRS the afore mentioned conducted an inspection to  
Maxi Food & Wine situated at 38 Chase Side N14 5PA. APPENDIX 15  
 
Officers showed their credentials and explained the nature of the inspection to a 
mature male of Mediterranean appearance whom spoke little English.   
A female of Mediterranean appearance was also on the retail premises.   
An Officer from Enfield Council requested to speak to the Owner of Maxi Food & 
Wine.  The mature male explained that the Owner was not on the retail premises.  
The Officer requested that the male telephone the Owner with the aim of explaining 
the nature of the inspection to the Owner.  The Officer spoke to a male via telephone 
whom identified himself as Ali Kemal YENGIN, Owner of Maxi Food & Wine. Mr 
YENGIN stated Aylin YENGIN as the Designated Premises Supervisor at the time of 
the inspection.  The Officer explained the nature of the inspection to Mr YENGIN and 
stated that he would be notified the outcome of the inspection. 
 
During the inspection, Illegal tobacco were found and seized on the retail premises, 
namely Approx. 50 packets of cigarettes namely: - 
 
Cigarettes 
 
x20 packets of Richmond cigarettes 
x10 packets of Marlboro Touch cigarettes 
x5 packets of Minsk cigarettes 
x10 packets of NZ gold cigarettes 
x2  packets of Marlboro Red cigarettes 
x3 packets of Richmond King Size cigarettes 
 
Vapes 
 
X27 Vapeman Solo's 
 
Viagra/Sildenafil 
 
x202 packets of Viagra  
x15 packets of Sildenafil. 
 
Drug paraphernalia was also displayed for sale at Maxi Food & Wine- 38 Chase Side 
N14 4PA and large cannisters of nitrous oxide (laughing gas) was also found stored 
in the storeroom and behind the shop counter. 
 

Page 17



                       7                  F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

The Officer subsequently spoke to Ali Kemal YENGIN via telephone and explained 
the afore-mentioned seizure and the legislation pertaining to nitrous oxide  
(Laughing gas) was discussed with Ali Kemal YENGIN. 
 
Upon exiting Maxi Food & Wine, Officers observed cannisters of nitrous oxide on the 
pavement a few feet from Maxi Food & Wine’s retail premises. 
 
The illegal tobacco sale conducted on 31/03/2022 and illegal tobacco seizure 
conducted on 04/08/2022 demonstrates potential breaches of the following premises 
licence conditions. 
 
Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 
There are currently no mandatory conditions pertaining to tobacco. 
 
However, it is alleged that Designated Supervisor Aylin (Yingin) YENGIN  
of Maxi Food & Wine, 38 Chase Side N14 4PA contravened Section 144 Licensing 
Act 2003 in regard to the possession of imported tobacco without payment of duty or 
that have otherwise been unlawfully imported and thus breaching the 
Licensing Objectives of the Premises Licence LN/200600265 namely the  
Prevention of Crime and Disorder. 
 
3.8 On or around 19 h September 2022, Enfield Council sent letters via post to  
Ahmet Ali Cutci/ Smile Arora and Ali Kemal Yengin/Kemal Altun inviting them to 
attend PACE interviews at Enfield Council’s Civic Centre scheduled for the  
11th October 2022.  The afore mentioned did not attend the said PACE interviews nor 
did they contact Enfield Council. APPENDIX 16 

 
3.9.5 On 20 h September 2022, a Pace interview letter was emailed to DPS Aylin 
Yengin and subsequent emails was received by Enfield Council from Aylin Yengin 
pertaining to the Pace interview.  APPENDIX 17   
 
The PACE letters outlined the following alleged contravention of Tobacco legislation:- 
 
Regulation 7(1) of the Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products 
Regulations 2015 
 
On 4th August 2022, Officers seized tobacco products alleged to breach Regulation 
7(1) of the Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015, in that 
the exterior of the packaging did not have the permitted colour, that being Pantone 
448c applied to it. Contrary to Regulation 15(1) of the Standardised Packaging of 
Tobacco Products Regulations 2015 
 
Tobacco & Related Products Regulations 2016. 
 
On 4th August 2022, Officers seized tobacco products alleged to breach Regulation 
7 and 11 of the Tobacco & Related Products Regulations 2016 because the labelling 
was not in English i.e., did not comply with the General warnings and information 
messages on tobacco products for smoking and/or General conditions applicable to 
all health warnings on tobacco products. Contrary to Regulation 48 of the Tobacco 
& Related Products Regulations 2016. 
 
The approximate amount of excise duty and VAT evaded on the 1000 sticks of  
non-compliant cigarettes is £ 417.43. 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



                       8                  F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

Human Medicines Regulations 2012 
 
On 4th August 2022, Officers seized x202 packets of Viagra and x15 packets of 
Sildenafil as they were alleged to breach Section 12 of the Consumer Protection Act 
and Human Medicines Regulations 2012. 
 
The afore-mentioned medicines were subsequently referred to the Medicines & 
Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency (MHRA) on 16/08/2022. 
On 19/08/2022, the MHRA confirmed that a warning letter would be issued to Maxi 
Food & Wine-38 Chase Side N14 4PA in regard to the seized medicines. 
 
3.9 On 08/08/2022, Enfield Council’s Licensing Department issued a letter to Aylin 
YENGIN regarding the suspension of premises licence due to non-payment. 
APPENDIX 18 
 
3.9.1 On or around 30/09/2022, Enfield Council’s Licensing Department issued 
variation of premises licence issued to Aylin YENGIN.   APPENDIX 19 
 
3.9.2 On 03/09/2022, Officers from Enfield Council conducted a Licensing 
Enforcement inspection whereby proof of payment of annual licensing fee was 
ascertained pertaining to payment of premises licence regarding Maxi Food & Wine, 
38 Chase Side N14 4PA. APPENDIX 20  
 
During the inspection, Aylin Yengin stated that their name should be spelt as Yingin 
and not Yengin. However, companies house states the previous Company Director of 
Yengin Ltd as Aylin Yengin, of 38 Chase Side N14 NPA. Companies House states 
Aylin Yengin was appointed as Company Director of Yengin Ltd on 26/09/2018 and 
resigned as Company Director of Yengin Ltd on 10/02/2021. 
  
Aylin Yengin is also the current Company Director of Maxi Store Ltd company no: 
11653801 from 01/11/2018, Registered Office address: 38a Chase Side, London  
N14 4PA and the current business rates payer of Maxi Wine Centre-495 Hertford Rd 
EN3 that also had a seizure of illegal tobacco during an Op Cece Tobacco 
enforcement session conducted 17/02/2022.   
 
3.9.3 Aylin Yengin did not attend a formal interview in accordance with the 
Police and Criminal Evidence Act (PACE) pertaining to the afore-mentioned seizure. 
However, on 02/06/2022, Aylin Yengin emailed Enfield Council a receipt of 
10/03/2022 pertaining to genuine tobacco that was returned to Maxi Wine Centre, 
495 Hertford Rd EN3, confirming connection with Maxi Wine Centre.  
 (APPENDIX 21 ) 
 
3.9.6 On 30 h September 2022, Enfield Council conducted a Licensing enforcement 
inspection to Maxi Food & Wine, 38 Chase Side.  Hakan Dabak identified as the 
person in charge of Maxi Food & Wine during the inspection and indicated that the 
Premises Licence Holder/Designated Premises Supervisor was normally at the 
retail premises. However, Hakan Dabak explained that the DPS was giving birth at 
the time of the inspection. 40 boxes of Nitrous oxide (laughing gas) were stored at 
Maxi Food & Wine as was drug paraphernalia. (APPENDIX 22) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



                       9                  F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

The following breaches of the premises licence were identified during the said 
inspection and outlined within the Inspection sheet: - 
 
Annex 1 Mandatory Conditions: - 
 

1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated 
premises supervisor in respect of this licence.  

 
Designated Premises Supervisor was not on retail premises at time of 
Licensing inspection. 

 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence.   
 
Designated Premises Supervisor was not on retail premises at time of 
Licensing inspection 
 

Annex 2 mandatory Conditions 
 

4. All staff shall be trained, and re-trained every six months, with regard to the 
sale of alcohol 
 
No staff training records seen during inspection 
 

       7. The 'Challenge 21' proof-of-age scheme shall be operated at the premises. 
 
           No ‘Challenge 25’ stickers/posters seen during the inspection 
 
       9. A Central Station Alarm system shall be installed, operated and maintained at  
          the premises. The system shall comply with EU50131 and shall include a panic  
          button facility 
 
          No Alarm information available during inspection 
 
      11. A prominent, clear and legible notice shall be displayed at the exit requesting  
            the public to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises  
            and the area quietly 
 
            No ‘Leave quietly’ signs/posters seen during the inspection  
 

        12. There shall be displayed, on the exit doors and immediately inside the  
              premises, a sign stating 'you are entering a drinking control area and no  
              open alcoholic drinks are to be taken off the premises 
 
             No drinking prohibition signs seen during the inspection 
 
         The inspection sheet outlined Maxi Food & Wine stated 14 days from  
         30.09.2022 to comply with the afore-mentioned licensing conditions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



                       10                  F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

4.0 Additional Information: 
 
4.1 Home Office revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 (April 2018) (11.27), states that there are certain criminal activities that may 
arise in connection with licensed premises which should be treated particularly 
seriously. The list includes the use of licensed premises for the sale or storage of 
smuggled tobacco and alcohol (i.e., non-duty paid products). 
 
4.2 The guidance (11.28) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsible 
authorities will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and 
crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime 
prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further 
crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – 
should be seriously considered.  
 
 
5.0 Conclusion: 
 
Non-UK Duty paid illegal tobacco is known to be an activity conducted by  
Organised Crime, it is important that any identified illegal tobacco is removed from 
the market. From a Public Health perspective 80,000 deaths in England are a result 
of smoking illnesses and illegal tobacco/cigarettes are known to be smuggled into the 
UK to be sold for high profit margins with blatant disregard to compliance with 
product safety legislation. 
 
Having regard Enfield Council’s Tobacco Control Strategy that implements  
Central Government’s Public Health Agenda, Enfield Council’s Trading Standards 
Authority is of the opinion that taking into consideration: - 
  

• The alleged sale of non-compliant cigarettes, namely 2 packets of  
Marlboro Gold cigarettes on 31.03.2022 

• The seizure of approximately 343 non-compliant Vapes/e-cigarettes on 
24.03.2022. 

• The seizure of packets of 1000 sticks of non-duty paid cigarettes and 
27 non-compliant E-cigarettes/Vapes that were seized from Maxi Food 

            & Wine on 17.2.2022 
 

It is therefore appropriate to recommend that this licence be revoked, (even in the 
first instance). 
 
Current Conditions: No current mandatory conditions pertaining to tobacco. 
 

Suspension of Licence:                                                       
 
Revocation of Licence:                                                        

Recommended period of suspension (max 3 months):  

 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 21



                       11                  F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

If the Licensing Committee is minded not to revoke the licence, then Enfield Council’s 
Trading Standards Authority requests that the licence be suspended until the 
following actions have been completed: 
 
5.1.1 Full compliance with the licence conditions has been demonstrated. 
 
5.2 Trading Standards make the following recommendations regarding amendments 
to the licence conditions: - 
 

• Non-duty paid tobacco or alcohol must not be stored or sold from the 
premises or from any motor-vehicle.  

 

• A 'Think 25' proof of age scheme shall be operated and relevant material shall 
be displayed at the premises.   
 

• A written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and completed 
when necessary. This record shall be made available to Police and/or the 
Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year from the 
date of the last entry. 
 

• Signs shall be prominently displayed on the exit doors advising customers that 
the premises is in a Public Space Protection Order Area (or similar) and that 
alcohol should not be taken off the premises and consumed in the street.  
These notices shall be positioned at eye level and in a location where they 
can be read by those leaving the premises. 

 

• Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall 
purchase alcohol and / or tobacco stock. 
 

• Alcohol and tobacco stock shall only be purchased from registered 
wholesalers. 
 

• The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought are 
kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been brought into 
the UK through legal channels.  Receipts shall show the following details: (1) 
Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's company details, if applicable; (3) 
Seller's VAT details, if applicable.  Copies of these documents shall be 
retained for no less than 12 months and shall be made available to police or 
authorised officers of the council on request within five working days of the 
request.  The most recent three months’ worth of receipts shall be kept on the 
premises and made available to the police or authorised officers of the council 
on request. 
 

• All tobacco products that are not on the tobacco display shall be stored in a 
container clearly marked ‘Tobacco Stock’.  This container shall be kept within 
the storeroom or behind the sales counter.  
 

• Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind the 
sales counter to make a sale. 

 

• No Nitrous oxide (laughing gas) should be stored or sold to consumers 
whereby it is reasonable for the retailer to know that the Nitrous Oxide would 
be misused by the consumer or to any persons under the age of 18 years old.  
 
 
 

Page 22



                       12                  F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before No 

 
If yes please state the date of that application 

Day Month Year 

 / / 
 

 

If you have made representations before relating to these premises please state 
what they were and when you made them 
 
N/A 
 
 
. 
 

 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON 
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION 
 
Part 3 – Signatures (please read guidance note 3) 
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent 
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what 
capacity. 
 

Signature:  
 

Date: 26/10/2022 
 

Capacity:  Senior Fair-Trading Officer 
   

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for 
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5) 
      

Post town 
      

Post Code 
      

Telephone number (if any)        

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)       

Please tick yes 

▪ I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible 
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club 
premises certificate, as appropriate 

 

▪ I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements 
my application will be rejected 

 

Page 23



                       13                  F LIC 1A 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

 
Notes for Guidance  

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems 

which are included in the grounds for review if available. 
3. The application form must be signed. 
4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf 

provided that they have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this 

application. 
 

Page 24



Annex B
Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Internal - Official - Sensitive 

LICENSING AUTHORITY REPRESENTATION 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  

Name and address of premises:   Maxi Food & Wine 
 38 Chase Side 

      London  
      N14 5PA 

Type of Application: Review of Premises Licence 

Detailed below is information not previously included in the review application 
submitted on 26/10/2022 

Since the submission of the Licensing Review Application pertaining to Maxi Food & 
Wine, 38 Chase Side N14 5PA the following outlines information that was not included 
in the Licensing Review Application of 26.10.2022: - 

• On 26.10.2022 to 23.11.2022 Enfield Council Trading Standards Department
ascertained that Aylin Yengin was unable to attend a PACE interview due to
pregnancy.  The PACE interview was therefore rescheduled for 28.11.2022
whereby a Turkish interpreter was requested to be present.

• On 21.11.2022, Enfield Council’s Licensing Department a Licensing
enforcement inspection to Maxi Food & Wine -38 Chase Side N14 5PA.
Please have regard to Licensing inspection report of 21.11.2022
and photos of Maxi Food & Wine retail premises. Appendix 23

Premises Licence Condition 4. 

• All staff shall be trained, and re-trained every six months, with regard to
the sale of alcohol.

• During the afore-mentioned inspection, training records of Maxi Food & Wine
were inspected.  There were two males on the retail premises.
However, one of the males who was serving behind the shop counter was
not within the training records and spoke little English. The other male also
spoke limited English but was within the training records.
Although the said premises licence condition does not stipulate to keep training
records, it is due diligence for the retailer to keep training records to confirm
staff training.

Premises Licence Condition 8. 

• A CCTV system shall be installed, operated and maintained at the
premises. The system shall conform to the Data Protection Act guidelines.
Cameras shall monitor the front entrance doors, till area, alcohol displays 
and the outside of the premises. The time and date shall be generated 

Annex CPage 219



 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

onto recordings, which shall be of a quality to satisfy the Police and 
which shall be retained for a minimum of 31 days. 
 

• During the afore-mentioned inspection CCTV appeared to be in use although 
that staff of Maxi Food & Wine were not able to demonstrate the utilisation of 
CCTV or 31 days of CCTV footage within the retail premises of Maxi Food & 
Wine, as outlined within the premises licence condition. 
 

Large cannisters of  Nitrous Oxide were displayed for sale (despite advisory letters from 
Enfield Council Trading Standards Department (Appendices 9 and 11) in addition to 
outlining the Psychoactive Act 2016 during the seizure of illegal tobacco to Ali Kemal 
YENGIN on 04.08.2022. 
 
The nitrous oxide cannisters were removed from sale during the Licensing 
Enforcement Inspection.  Drugs paraphernalia were also displayed for sale during the 
said inspection.  
 
At the conclusion of the inspection, the afore mentioned were explained as breaching 
the licensing objectives. 
 
                    
 
Duly Authorised: Amanda Butler- Senior Fair-Trading Officer  
 
Contact:  

Signed:  Date: 25.11.2022 
 
 

Page 220



Appendix 23Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Licensing Authority 

Licensing Team 
Environment & Operational Services 
Place Directorate 
Enf ield Council 
Silver Street 
Enf ield 
EN1 3ES 

Licensing Unit 
Edmonton Police Station 
462 Fore Street,  
London 
N9 0PW 
PC Justyna Golota  

 
www.met.police.uk 

21/11/2022 

Police supporting application for review of the premises certificate 
under the Licencing Act 2003  

Maxi Food & Wine, 38 Chase Side, London N14 5PA

Dear Sir/Madam, 

In summary, I wish to make supporting representation for the above premises to review 
the Premises licence on the following objectives.  

• Prevention of crime and disorder
• Prevention of public nuisance

From Police perspective there was a number of complaints and incidence related to the 
above named premises. 

The complaints very in nature from nuisance to violent disorder.  
Police database was checked for the time period between December 2018 and December 
2022. 

In the period of 4 years there was total of 34 incidence related to the area of the Maxi Food 
& wine, however only small number was evidentially linked to Maxi Food & wine. 

Relevant 8 incidence are as follow: 

Annex DPage 234



.  
 
 
CAD 6517/17DEC21 – suspicious circumstances  
CAD 1723/26JUN22 – suspicious circumstances  
CAD 5581/24/JUL22 – drug and ASB 
CAD 7717/25/JUL22 – violence against a person 
CAD 1790/15/AUG22 – drug and ASB  
CAD 5153/19AUG22 – ASB nuisance 
CAD 1210/22OCT22 – violence against a person  
 
 
CRIS: 5224712/22 where police was unable to view CCTV upon request. 
 
 
 
If required and necessary I’m happy to provide additional information in relation to the above 
listed incidence.  
 
Police believes that the Premises, premises licence holder and/or DPS, contributed to the 
ASB/nuisance and crime in the imminent proximity to the premises by not operating in 
accordance with the licence as per Local authority findings listed in the licence application 
review.  
 
Regards,  
 
 
 
PC Justyna Golota 2211NA  
North Area Licensing Officer 
 

Page 235



Annex E 
 

Supporting Representation – Southgate Ward Councillors 
 
 
I, Cllr Ioannou and Cllr Joannides are all in agreement that we support the review 
and believe that Maxi Food & Wine should have its licence revoked. Please accept 
this response on behalf of all three of us.  
  
We believe this licence should be revoked as they have violated every single one of 
the licencing objectives; prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; the 
prevention of public nuisance and protection of children from harm.  
  
The first major concern is the sale of nitrous oxide (laughing gas) on this premises. It 
is classified as the sale of drug paraphernalia and therefore, raises concerns 
regarding the usage of the substance and consequently violates all the licencing 
objectives. It is a threat to public safety and the health of those use it as laughing 
gas; it fails to protect children from harm as it is a popular recreational drug in 
children as young as sixteen and it is unclear who Maxi Food and Wine have been 
selling this to. Enabling misuse of nitrous oxide is unhelpful in the aim of prevention 
of crime and disorder as it enables drug misuse. It is also a public nuisance as 
officers found these canisters littered in close proximity to Maxi Food and Wine and 
the misuse of such substances can contribute to antisocial behaviour. The use of 
nitrous oxide IS linked to antisocial behaviour.   
  
Following on from this the staff have not completed or at least there is no evidence of 
completion of the relevant training for the sale of alcohol. This is a breach of 
regulation and is therefore a threat to public safety as there is a lack of education 
surrounding the safe sale of alcohol. Furthermore, officers stated that there were no 
‘challenge 25’ signs or stickers on the premises which is therefore a threat to the 
protection of children from harm as may encourage those not of legal age to attempt 
to buy alcohol here. This can therefore be classified also as an issue for preventing 
crime and disorder as it is illegal for children under the age of 18 to buy alcohol.  
  
It is of deep concern that Viagra and Sildenafil were found on the premises. Viagra is 
only supposed to be bought from regulated sources such as pharmacists and the 
sale of these drugs at Maxi Food and wine is therefore a threat to public safety as 
they’re being sold improperly and potentially inappropriately with the potential to 
cause harm. As mentioned in the report, this is a breach of the relevant acts. This 
obviously undermines public safety.  
  
Additionally, the sale of tobacco at this premises is a serious concern as the tobacco 
and vapes found here were illegal. Maxi Food and wine have broken the law, and 
this should not be taken lightly. The tobacco found on the premises does not comply 
with UK regulation as do the vapes. This not only is a breach of UK law but also a 
threat to public safety and potentially even children’s safety as such (unregulated) 
products are being sold here. We also find it troubling that that non-duty paid 
tobacco has links with wider organised crime and therefore there is potentially a 

Page 236



wider and more threatening issue here that undermines most, if not all, the licencing 
objectives.  
  
I hope this is helpful and you can appreciate our concerns.  
 
Cllr Elisa Morreale  
 
 
 

Page 237



Annex F 
Proposed Conditions Arising from the Review Application 

 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  

The Mandatory Conditions are attached and form part of the Operating Schedule of 
your licence/certificate. You must ensure that the operation of the licensed premises 
complies with the attached Mandatory Conditions as well as the Conditions in Annex 
2 and Annex 3 (if applicable). Failure to do this can lead to prosecution or review of 
the licence. 

 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

3. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters ancillary to 
the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children. 

4. All staff shall be trained, and re-trained every six months, with regard to the sale of 
alcohol. 

5. Alcohol shall be securely stored, locked away from other stock with limited key 
access. 

6. Youths shall be discouraged from loitering outside the premises. 

7. The 'Challenge 21' proof-of-age scheme shall be operated at the premises. 

Remove and replaced with new Condition 12 below. 

7. A CCTV system shall be installed, operated and maintained at the premises. The 
system shall conform to the Data Protection Act guidelines. Cameras shall monitor 
the front entrance doors, till area, alcohol displays and the outside of the premises. 
The time and date shall be generated onto recordings, which shall be of a quality to 
satisfy the Police and which shall be retained for a minimum of 31 days. 

8. A Central Station Alarm system shall be installed, operated and maintained at the 
premises. The system shall comply with EU50131 and shall include a panic button 
facility. 

9. Unaccompanied children under 14 are not allowed to enter the premises after 
21:00. 

10. A prominent, clear and legible notice shall be displayed at the exit requesting the 
public to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area 
quietly. 

12. There shall be displayed, on the exit doors and immediately inside the premises, 
a sign stating 'you are entering a drinking control area and no open alcoholic drinks 
are to be taken off the premises'. 

Page 238



As this above condition is no longer applicable, it should be removed, and the 
updated condition can be seen in new proposed Condition 14 below.  

 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

New conditions to be added to the licence: 

11. Non-duty paid tobacco or alcohol must not be stored or sold from the premises or 
from any motor-vehicle. 

12. A 'Think 25' proof of age scheme shall be operated and relevant material shall be 
displayed at the premises. 

13. A written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and completed 
when necessary. This record shall be made available to Police and/or the Local 
Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year from the date of the 
last entry. 

14. Signs shall be prominently displayed on the exit doors advising customers that 
the premises is in a Public Space Protection Order Area (or similar) and that alcohol 
should not be taken off the premises and consumed in the street. These notices shall 
be positioned at eye level and in a location where they can be read by those leaving 
the premises. 

15. Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall 
purchase alcohol and / or tobacco stock. 

16. Alcohol and tobacco stock shall only be purchased from registered wholesalers. 

17. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought are 
kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been brought into the UK 
through legal channels. Receipts shall show the following details:  

(a) Seller's name and address;  

(b) Seller's company details, if applicable;  

(c) Seller's VAT details, if applicable.  

Copies of these documents shall be retained for no less than 12 months and shall be 
made available to police or authorised officers of the council on request within five 
working days of the request. The most recent three months’ worth of receipts shall 
be kept on the premises and made available to the police or authorised officers of 
the council on request.  

18. All tobacco products that are not on the tobacco display shall be stored in a 
container clearly marked ‘Tobacco Stock’. This container shall be kept within the 
storeroom or behind the sales counter. 

19. Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind the sales 
counter to make a sale.  

Page 239



20. No Nitrous oxide (laughing gas) should be stored or sold to consumers whereby 
it is reasonable for the retailer to know that the Nitrous Oxide would be misused by 
the consumer or to any persons under the age of 18 years old. 

Page 240



Internal - Official - Sensitive 

TRADING STANDARDS REVIEW

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 2 

Name and address of premises:   Maxi Food & Wine 
 38 Chase Side 
 London  
 N14 5PA 

Type of Application: Review of Premises Licence 

Since the submission of the Licensing Review Application pertaining to Maxi Food & 
Wine, 38 Chase Side N14 5PA the following outlines information that was not included 
in the Licensing Review Application of 26.10.2022 and Additional information submitted 
1.12.2022: - 

• Companies House states Aylin Yengin as Company Director of Maxi Store Ltd
Registered Office address: 38a Chase Side London, N14 5PA. Please have
regard to Appendix 24 (companies house printout)

• Companies House states Aylin Yengin as Company Director of Maxxi Foods
Ltd. Registered Office address: 38 Chase Side, London, N14 5PA
Aylin Yengin resigned from Maxxi Foods Ltd on 1.8.2022. Appendix 24.1
(Companies house printout)

• On 4.8.2022 during a telephone conversation with the Officer, Ali Kemal Yengin
(alleged to be Kemal Altun) stated that he was the Owner Maxxi Store Ltd t/a
Maxi Food & Wine and confirmed his d.o.b as . Please have regard
to Appendix 25 (Companies House Printout) and Appendix 26 (Photocopy
of Officers notebook re: inspection 4.8.2022).

• On 26th October 2022, at approx 10.25 HRS, an Officer went to Maxi Food &
Wine to hand deliver Blue Notice and Licensing Review Application. The Officer
spoke to Kemal Yengin alias (Kemal Altun) via phone and requested to speak
to DPS/PH Aylin Yengin.  Ali Kemal Yengin (Kemal Altun) explained that his
wife Aylin Yengin recently gave birth and was therefore unavailable. The Officer
explained that Enfield Council had submitted a Licensing Review application
because of a seizure of tobacco from Maxi Food & Wine's retail premises
4.8.2022.The Officer also explained that it is suggested that Aylin Yengin
obtains independent legal advice as outlined within the covering letter and that
the Blue Notice must be erected on the retail premises so that the public could
be notified that a licensing review application had been submitted.
Ali Kemal Yengin alias (Kemal Altun) stated that he had received an email from
Enfield Council of 26.10.2022 regarding Aylin Yengin’s PACE interview and
confirmed that Aylin Yengin would like to attend a PACE interview on 28th
November 2022.

Page 241



 
Internal - Official - Sensitive 

The Officer left the licensing review application and appendices with Ahmet Ali 
Cutci and left the retail premises immediately after the Blue notice was erected 
on the retail premises shopwindow.  
 

• On 28.11.2022, Aylin Yengin did not attend the formal interview at Enfield 
Council’s Civic Centre in accordance with the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 
(PACE). 
 
 

• As already outlined within paragraph 3.9.2 of the Licensing Review Application, 
Aylin Yengin is the business rates payer of Maxi Wine Centre, 495 Herford Rd 
EN3.  The afore-mentioned retail premises has had a history of seized illegal 
alcohol and illegal/non-duty paid tobacco.  Maxi Wine Centre was known as 
Asya Wine Centre whereby Uygar Altun (formally known as Kemal Altun) was 
prohibited from being involved in any way in the operation and / or management 
of the business or be permitted to work in the business in any capacity. 
Although, the afore-mentioned pertains to a separate retail premises, it is 
alleged that Kemal Altun Owner of Maxxi Store Ltd t/a Maxi Food & Wine is the 
same Kemal Altun that was prohibited from the afore-mentioned business.  As 
Ali Kemal Yengin (alleged to be Kemal Altun) did not attend a PACE interview, 
this is yet to be confirmed/ascertained by Enfield Council. 
 

• On 5.12.2022, Enfield Council sent a warning letter and forfeiture notice via 
post to Ali Kemal YENGIN  (Kemal Altun) pertaining to the seizure of illegal 
tobacco on 4.8.2022. Please have regard to Appendix 27. 

 
 

Duly Authorised: Amanda Butler- Senior Fair-Trading Officer  
 
Contact:  

Signed:  Date: 13.12.2022 
 
 

Page 242



 

External - Official - Sensitive 

 

Appendix 24Page 243



 

External - Official - Sensitive 

Appendix 24.1
P

age 244



 

External - Official - Sensitive 

 

P
age 245



 

External - Official - Sensitive 

 

 

Appendix 25Page 246



Appendix 26

Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



 

External - Official - Sensitive 

 

 

 

 

WARNING LETTER 
 
 
Dear Kemal Altun/ (Ali Kemal Yengin) Owner of Maxi Food & Wine 
 
 
The Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 2016  
The Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015  
Trade Marks Act 1994 
Licensing Act 2003 
 
I am writing to you as the Owner of Maxi Food & Wine 38 Chase Side London N14 5PA. 
 
Alleged Offence(s): 
 
On 31st March 2022, x2 packets Marlboro Gold Cigarettes were purchased from  
Maxi food & Wine, 38 Chase Side London N14 5PA. The cigarettes packaging did not 
display the requisite colour namely Pantone 448c and the labelling and/or health warnings 
on the packaging was not in English. Contrary to Section 15(1) of the Standardised 
Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2016 and Regulation 48 of the  
Tobacco & related Products Regulations 2016 
 
On 4th August 2022 at Maxi Food & Wine-38 Chase Side, London, N14 5PA you did 
knowingly keep or allow to be kept goods namely cigarettes and e-cigarettes/vapes that 
have been imported without payment of duty or which have otherwise been unlawfully 
imported. Contrary to Section 144 of the Licensing Act 2003  
 
On 4th August 2022 at Maxi Food & Wine-38 Chase Side, London, N14 5PA you did have        
in possession for supply tobacco, namely 50 packets of cigarettes that failed to comply with 
the requirements of Regulation 7(1) of the Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products 
Regulations 2015 in that the exterior of the packaging did not have the permitted colour, that 
being Pantone 448c applied to it. Contrary to Regulation 15(1) of the Standardised 
Packaging of Tobacco products Regulations 2015  
 
 
 

 
 
Kemal Altun/ (Ali Kemal Yengin) 
Owner of Maxi Food & Wine 
38 Chase Side 
London 
N14 5PA 

  
 
 

Please reply to: Amanda Butler 

 

Email:  

Phone:  

Textphone:  

Fax:  

My Ref:  
LN/200600265 
 

Your Ref:  

Date:   

Appendix 27
Page 253



 

External - Official - Sensitive 

On 4th August 2022 at Maxi Food & Wine-38 Chase Side, London, N14 5PA you did have in 
possession for supply tobacco that failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation 7 
and 11 of the Tobacco & Related Products Regulations 2016 because the labelling and/or 
health warnings on the packaging was not in English.  Contrary to Regulation 48 of the 
Tobacco & related Products Regulations 2016 
 
On 4th August 2022 at Maxi Food & Wine-38 Chase Side, London, N14 5PA you did have in 
possession for supply tobacco that failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation 7 
and 11 of the Tobacco & Related Products Regulations 2016 because the labelling and/or 
health warnings on the packaging was not in English.  Contrary to Regulation 48 of the 
Tobacco & related Products Regulations 2016 
 
On 4th August 2022 at Maxi Food & Wine-38 Chase Side, London, N14 5PA you did have in 
possession for supply tobacco namely E-cigarettes/ Vapeman Solos that failed to comply 
with the requirements of Part 6 of the Tobacco & Related Products Regulations 2016/ 
Tobacco Products and Nicotine Inhaling Products (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2020.  
Contrary to Regulation 48 of the Tobacco & related Products Regulations 2016 
 
On 4th August 2022, medicines, namely x22 packets of Viagra (202 Viagra tablets) and 
x15 sachets of Sildenafil Oral were also seized from Maxi Food & Wine-38 Chase Side, 
London, N14 5PA.  Contrary to the Human Medicines Regulations 2012.   
The afore-mentioned medicines have subsequently been referred to the Medicines & 
Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency (MHRA). 
 
Trade Marks Act 1994 
All products that belong to a registered brand holder (trademark) must be purchased from a 
reputable supplier.  This includes cigarettes/tobacco and alcohol.     
 
Tobacco Products 
All tobacco products must comply with The Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 
2016, The Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015 and  
Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Traceability 
General Food Regulations states that all businesses are required to have a system and 
procedures in place to identify the person from whom they have been supplied food, drinks 
and/or tobacco.  The purchase of these products must be “traceable” and should be 
evidenced by documentation/receipts which must be available for inspection upon request.  
 
After careful consideration of the evidence, whilst there is enough evidence to consider 
prosecution pertaining to the seized tobacco, in this instance, Enfield Council are issuing this 
warning letter regarding the afore-mentioned non-duty paid/illegal cigarettes and non-
compliant Vapes/E-cigarettes.  
 
However, Enfield Council requires you to sign over the non-duty paid /illegal cigarettes, 
Non-compliant Vapes/E-cigarettes and illegal medicines for disposal in accordance with the 
Consumer Protection Act.   
 
Please sign and date the Voluntary Surrender form and return the afore-mentioned form to 

within 7 days.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 254



 

External - Official - Sensitive 

If you do not agree to sign over the non-duty paid tobacco, then Enfield Council will apply to 
the court for forfeiture and seek to recover the costs of doing so from Maxi Food & Wine. 
 
Licensing Act 2003- Premises Licence Conditions 
 
This warning letter has been issued separately to the pending Licensing Review Hearing 
regarding the Licensing Review application to revoke the premises licence of  
Maxi Food & Wine. 
 
Please consider this letter to be a warning as to your future conduct of your retail 
premises namely Maxi Food & Wine-38 Chase Side London N14 5PA.  
  
From the issuing of this warning letter, should smuggled goods be discovered in your 
licensed premises or motor-vehicles associated with your licensed premises, then 
Enfield Council’s Trading Standards Authority shall consider prosecution of any 
subsequent seizures of illegal tobacco. 
 
Enfield Council will continue to conduct test-purchasing sessions and Illegal Tobacco 
inspections to your retail premises and retailers within the Borough of Enfield.   
 
Yours sincerely  

 
Amanda Butler 
Senior Fair Trading Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 255



 

External - Official - Sensitive 

 
 
 
 

Page 256



 

External - Official - Sensitive 

 
 
 

 
 

      
   

Consumer Protection 
PO Box 57, Civic Centre 
Silver Street 
Enfield, Middlesex EN1 3X 

            Tel:  0208 132 1572  

    
                                                                                            
                                                                                            30/11/2022 
                                                                                          
                                                                     
TRANSFER OF PROPERTY DISCLAIMER 

 
I hereby transfer to the London Borough of Enfield all rights and property in the following 
articles which were in my possession, custody or control  
 
At: Maxi Food & Wine-38 Chase Side, London N14 5PA 
 
On 31st March 2022, x2 packets of Marlboro Gold Cigarettes were test purchased from  
Maxi Food & Wine -38 Chase Side, London N14 5PA. 
 
On 4th August 2022, Maxi Food & Wine-38 Chase Side, London N14 5PA was inspected by 
Officers from Enfield Council’s Trading Standards Department, along with a sniffer dog and a 
dog handler with the aim to crackdown on the sale of illegal tobacco, namely cigarettes and 
hand-rolling tobacco.  Officers seized approx. x50 packets of cigarettes and  
x27 non-compliant E-cigarettes/Vapes and x22 packets of Viagra and x15 sachets of 
Sildenafil medicines.  
 
The cigarettes and vapes/e-cigarettes did not comply with the Tobacco and Related 
Products Regulations 2016, Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015 
and/or 144 of the Licensing Act 2003. The medicines namely Viagra and Sildenafil did not 
comply with the Human Medicines Regulations 2012. 
 
I am authorised to waive all rights from this date, this date being the date of seizure by an 
officer of this service.  I further indemnify the London Borough of Enfield against any claim or 
encumbrance present or future regarding these goods. 
 
In signing this disclaimer, I understand that no further formal action will be taken against me 
in relation to these goods. 
 

 
(signed)…………………………………………………………..(date)……………………………. 
(print name)……………………………………………………….. 
for and on behalf of [Insert name of business] 
(witnessed 
by)………………………………………………….….(date)………………………….………… 
(print name)……………………………………………………….. 
 
Full details of the goods being signed over for disposal are detailed in the attached Schedule 
 

 
To:    
 
Kemal Altun/ (Ali Kemal Yengin) 
Owner of Maxi Food & Wine 
38 Chase Side 
London 
N14 5PA 

 
 

Page 257



 

External - Official - Sensitive 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

      
   

Consumer Protection 
PO Box 57, Civic Centre 
Silver Street 
Enfield, Middlesex EN1 3XY 

                                                                                                                                                    
Tel:  0208 132 1572 

                                                                                               
                                                                                              30/11/2022 
 
TRANSFER OF PROPERTY DISCLAIMER – Schedule of Goods 
Ref:  
 

Seal 
Number 

Quantity 
 

Description 

PO7796612 X20 X5 Minsk cigarettes 
X10 NZ gold cigarettes 
X 2 Marlboro Red cigarettes 
X3 Richmond King Size cigarettes 

 

PO7796613 X30 X20 Richmond cigarettes 
X10  Marlbo 
ro Touch cigarettes 

N11775562 X19 X19  Vapeman Solo's e-cigarettes/vapes 

N02624039 X8 X8 Vapeman Solos 

N11775565 202 viagra 
tablets and 
15 sachets 

X22 Packets of Viagra (202 viagra tablets) 
X15 Sildenafil Oral 

 
Human Rights Act 1998 
Under Article 1 of the First Protocol of the European Convention on Human Rights every 
legal or natural person is entitled to peaceful enjoyment of his possessions.  No one shall be 
deprived of his possessions except in the public interest and subject to the conditions 
provided for by law and the general principles of International Law.  In waiving all rights in 
the articles listed above I recognise that I have no rights in the intellectual property in any 
copyright and/or registered trademarks contained on or in those items and that the items 
would be liable to forfeited by the courts if an application was so made. 
 
 

 
To:    
Kemal Altun/ (Ali Kemal Yengin) 
Owner of Maxi Food & Wine 
38 Chase Side 
London 
N14 5PA 
 
 

Page 258


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	4 MAXI FOOD & WINE, 38 CHASE SIDE, SOUTHGATE, N14 5PA
	1. LSC Report Maxi Food & Wine Review - amended
	Item
	Agenda - Part
	1.1 The premises has been previously known as Station Stores, and Royal News before being named Maxi Food & Wine.
	1.2 On 23 June 2006, a new premises licence application which was not subject to any representations, was granted by officers in accordance with delegated powers, naming Mr Kandasamy Nirmalan as the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and also as the Design...
	1.3 On 27 May 2011, a transfer application which was not subject to any representations, was granted by officers in accordance with delegated powers, naming Mr Gurdeep Singh Kahlon as the Premises Licence Holder (PLH), and also became the DPS.
	1.4 On 6 September 2021, a transfer application which was not subject to any representations, was granted by officers in accordance with delegated powers, naming Mr Dervis Altun as the Premises Licence Holder (PLH), and also became the DPS.
	1.5 On 12 May 2021, Mr Dervis Altun surrendered premises licence LN/200600265, as he stated he had not been owner of this premises for some time.
	1.6 On 7 June 2021, a transfer application which was not subject to any representations, was granted by officers in accordance with delegated powers, naming Mrs Aylin Yengin as the Premises Licence Holder (PLH), and also became the DPS. The transfer a...
	1.7 The premises has not submitted any minor variation applications to add conditions.
	1.8 The premises licence LN/200600265 has not been subject to a review application previously.
	1.9  The current Premises Licence LN/200600265 permits:
	1.9.1       Hours the premises are open to the public: 06:30 to 23:00 daily.
	1.8.2  Supply of alcohol (off supplies only): 06:30 to 23:00 daily.

	2.0  This Application:
	2.1  On 26 October 2022 an application was made by Enfield Council’s Trading Standards for the review of Premises Licence LN/200600265 and is produced in Annex A.
	2.2  The Appendices to support the Trading Standards review are produced in Annex B.
	2.3   Trading Standards have produced additional information to support the review application, which is produced in Annex C.
	2.4   The review application has been submitted as Trading Standards believes that Mrs Aylin Yengin is not promoting the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective. A wide range of unlawful activity has taken place whilst Mrs Aylin Yengin ha...
	 illicit tobacco has been seized from the premises;
	 breaches of licence conditions;
	 selling non-compliant vapes and e-cigarettes;
	 selling Viagra and Sildenafil without a medical registration from MHRA;
	 selling drug paraphernalia;
	 selling nitrous oxide (known as NOx).
	2.5   The review application seeks to revoke the premises licence in its entirety.
	2.6  The review application was advertised in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.
	2.7   Each of the Responsible Authorities were consulted in respect of the application.
	4.0  Proposed Licence Conditions:
	5.0 Relevant Law, Guidance & Policies:
	5.1 The paragraphs below are extracted from either :
	5.1.1 the Licensing Act 2003 (‘Act’); or
	5.1.2 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to the Home Office of April 2018 (‘Guid’); or
	5.1.3 the London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing Policy Statement of January 2020 (‘Pol’).

	5.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a view to promoting the licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)].
	5.3The licensing objectives are :
	5.3.1 the prevention of crime and disorder;
	5.3.2 public safety;
	5.3.3the prevention of public nuisance; &
	5.3.4the protection of children from harm [Act s.4(2)].

	5.4 In carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to :
	5.4.1 the Council’s licensing policy statement; &
	5.4.2 guidance issued by the Secretary of State [Act s.4(3)].

	5.5 In reviewing a licence the Licensing Sub-Committee will consider, and take into account, the complaints history of the premises and all other relevant information [Pol s.10.3].
	5.6 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected with licensable activities, for example the sale of contraband goods. The Sub-Committee does not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issu...
	5.7 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These include the use of the premises for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol [Guid s.11.27].
	5.8 Where reviews arise in respect of these criminal activities and the Sub-Committee determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined, it is expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously ...
	5.9 Having heard all of the representations (from all parties) the Licensing Sub-Committee must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps are :
	5.9.1 to modify the conditions of the licence;
	5.9.2 to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
	5.9.3 to remove the designated premises supervisor
	5.9.4 to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
	5.9.5 to revoke the licence [Act s.52].


	2. Annex A - Trading Standards Review Application
	3. Annex B - Appendices to TS Review Application
	LBE-SV-PRN-003_iR-ADV C3835 4CU04533_0555_001
	LBE-SV-PRN-003_iR-ADV C3835 4CU04533_0556_001
	LBE-SV-PRN-003_iR-ADV C3835 4CU04533_0558_001

	4. Annex C - Trading Standards Additional Information
	1. Maxi Food & Wine -Addition to Licensing Review Applicationl Information
	LICENSING AUTHORITY REPRESENTATION
	ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

	2. Additional Information Appendix 23

	5. Annex D - Supporting Rep - Police
	The complaints very in nature from nuisance to violent disorder.
	In the period of 4 years there was total of 34 incidence related to the area of the Maxi Food & wine, however only small number was evidentially linked to Maxi Food & wine.
	Relevant 8 incidence are as follow:
	.
	CAD 6517/17DEC21 – suspicious circumstances
	CAD 1723/26JUN22 – suspicious circumstances
	CAD 5581/24/JUL22 – drug and ASB
	CAD 7717/25/JUL22 – violence against a person
	CAD 1790/15/AUG22 – drug and ASB
	CAD 5153/19AUG22 – ASB nuisance
	CAD 1210/22OCT22 – violence against a person
	CRIS: 5224712/22 where police was unable to view CCTV upon request.
	If required and necessary I’m happy to provide additional information in relation to the above listed incidence.
	Police believes that the Premises, premises licence holder and/or DPS, contributed to the ASB/nuisance and crime in the imminent proximity to the premises by not operating in accordance with the licence as per Local authority findings listed in the li...

	6. Annex E - Supporting Rep - Ward Councillors
	7. Annex F - Proposed Conditions arising from the Review application
	8. Maxi Food  Wine-Additional Information 2 and Appendices 24-27_Redacted
	0.1 Maxi Food & Wine -Addition to Licensing Review ApplicationlInformation
	0.2 Companies House printout Maxi Store Ltd- Company Director Aylin Yengin
	0.3 Companies House printout Maxxi Foods Ltd- Company Director Aylin Yengin
	0.4 Companies House printout Maxxi Store Ltd-Company Director Kemal Altun
	0.6 Appendix 26 ABT notebook 4.8.2022 Maxi Food&wine
	LBE-SV-PRN-003_2YM07946_3862_001
	LBE-SV-PRN-003_2YM07946_3861_001
	LBE-SV-PRN-003_2YM07946_3857_001
	LBE-SV-PRN-003_2YM07946_3858_001
	LBE-SV-PRN-003_2YM07946_3859_001
	LBE-SV-PRN-003_2YM07946_3860_001

	0.7 warning letter and forfeiture notice 5.12.2022





